Jackie Yates
‘m R d s CHIEF EXECUTIVE
v.x'y ea I ng Civic Offices, Bridge Street,
Borough Council Reading RG1 2LU

& 0118 937 3787

Working better with you

To: Councillor Woodward (Chair), Mitchell
Email: julie.quarmby@reading.gov.uk

18 June 2025

Your contact is: Julie Quarmby - Committee Services

NOTICE OF MEETING - LICENSING APPLICATIONS SUB-COMMITTEE 26 JUNE 2025

A meeting of the Licensing Applications Sub-Committee will be held on Thursday, 26 June 2025
at 9.30 am in the Council Chamber, Civic Offices, Bridge Street, Reading, RG1 2LU. The Agenda
for the meeting is set out below.

AFFECTED Page No
WARDS

1. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST

Councillors to declare any disclosable pecuniary interests
they may have in relation to the items for consideration;

2. APPLICATION FOR THE REVIEW OF A STREET ABBEY 3-28
TRADING CONSENT - BROAD STREET, READING

To consider an application for the review of a Street Trading
Consent for the pitch located outside Clarks on Broad Street,
Reading.

*** Access to Civic Offices - Please note that, from 13 January 2025, the Customer Main
Entrance to the Civic Offices is moving from the front of the building to the back, because of
construction work for the new Central Library. If you are attending the meeting in person, please
enter via the new Customer Main Entrance in Simmonds Street. (The Council is asking
customers not to come down Fobney Street to access the new Customer Entrance, due to heavy
construction traffic in this area, and instead to walk via the pedestrian alleyway off Bridge Street
next to the “Greek Van”). See map below:

CIVIC OFFICES EMERGENCY EVACUATION: If an alarm sounds, leave by the nearest fire exit quickly and calmly
and assemble on the corner of Bridge Street and Fobney Street. You will be advised when it is safe to re-enter the
building.

www.reading.gov.uk | www.facebook.com/ReadingCouncil | www.twitter.com/ReadingCouncil



St Mary's

A

~The Oracle
Shopping
Centre

© Crown copyright and dalabase rights 2024 Ordnance Survey ACO000B04821



%Bogggjﬂg Agenda ltem 2

Working better with you

LOCAL GOVERNMENT (MISCELLANEOUS PROVISIONS) ACT 1982 HEARING
THURSDAY 26 JUNE 2025 at 09:30HRS
APPLICATION FOR THE REVIEW OF A STREET TRADING CONSENT

1. Trading Location:
Broad Street (Outside Clarks — 105 Broad Street)

2. Applicant:
Mr Robert Smalley - Reading Borough Council Licensing

3. Background:
Mr Alami has held street trading consents on Broad Street for over 16 years and for the

majority of that time sold leather goods, belts, scarves, sunglasses, gloves, hats and
buckles. On renewal in 2021, Mr Alami applied to sell juices, smoothies, slushies,
shakes and cakes.

Upon the renewal of Mr Alami’s street trading consent in 2023, a representation from
Mr Robert Smalley, Reading Borough Council Licensing Enforcement Officer was
received and a hearing held on 28/11/2023. Mr Smalley stated that the consent should
not be renewed due to the failure of Mr Alami to avail himself to a reasonable extent of
the street trading consent. On 28/11/2023 the Sub-Committee decided to grant the
application for the renewal of the Street Trading Consent for the sale of:

‘Juices, Smoothies, Slushies, Shakes, Cakes and Hot Food and Drink not specifically
listed on any existing street trading consent/licence previously granted by Reading
Borough Council’. The minutes from this hearing are attached as Appendix TS-1

On 15/10/2024 Mr Alami submitted a renewal application for the period of 01/11/2024
to 31/10/2025. In this application he stated that he wanted to sell:

‘Burgers, Loaded Fries, Jacket Potatoes, Slushie, Lemonade, Mango Lassi’

This consent was granted to include the above and ‘Hot Food and Drink not specifically
listed on any existing street trading consent/licence previously granted by Reading
Borough Council’

Mr Smalley’s representation in relation to this hearing is attached as Appendix TS-2
and is focused on Mr Alami’s failure to avail himself to a reasonable extent of the street
trading consent.

Mr Alami’s current street trading consent is attached as Appendix TS-3

The location of Mr Alami’s pitch is attached as Appendix TS-4

The current catering trailer is 12ft by 6ft and a photograph of the trailer is attached as
Appendix TS-5

Page 3



4. Current activities and hours:

The current street trading consent authorises:

Trading hours:

Monday to Saturday - 0900hrs to 1800hrs
Sunday - 1000hrs to 1700hrs.
Goods sold:

Burgers, Loaded Fries, Jacket Potatoes, Slushie, Lemonade, Mango Lassi, Hot Food
and Drink not specifically listed on any existing street trading consent/licence
previously granted by Reading Borough Council’

| 6. Date of receipt of application: 08 May 2025

| 7. Date of closure of period for representation from Consent Holder: 05 June 2025

8. Representation from Consent Holder

During the 28 day period given by Reading Borough Council for the Consent Holder to
make representation against the review application, no representation was
received from Mr Salim Alami — Street Trading Consent Holder.

9. Powers of the Authority in determining an application for the review of a street
trading consent

The Licensing authority, when determining an application for the review of a street
trading consent may:

e Take no action
e Vary the times, conditions and goods to be sold
e Revoke the consent

9. The Local Government (Miscellaneous Provisions) Act 1982

The Local Government (Miscellaneous Provisions) Act 1982 is the legislation that
governs Street Trading outside London.

Schedule 4, paragraph 7, sub-paragraph 6 of the Act states:
The council may at any time vary the conditions of a street trading consent.
Schedule 4, paragraph 7, sub-paragraph 10 of the Act states:

A street trading consent may be granted for any period not exceeding 12 months but
may be revoked at any time.

Schedule 4, Paragraph 9, sub-paragraph 5 of the Act states:

Page 4



Where a consent is surrendered or revoked, the council shall remit or refund, as they
consider appropriate, the whole or a part of any fee paid for the grant or renewal of the
consent.

10. Appendices

Appendix TS-1: Minutes from the Sub-Committee Hearing held on 28/11/2023

Appendix TS-2: Representation by Mr Robert Smalley — Reading Borough
Council Licensing

Appendix TS-3: Mr Salim Alami’s Current Street Trading Consent

Appendix TS-4: Photograph showing Mr Salim Alami’s trading location

Appendix TS-5: Photograph of Mr Salim Alami’s trading unit

Page 5




Appendix TS-1

LICENSING APPLICATIONS SUB-COMMITTEE MEETING MINUTES -
28 NOVEMBER 2023

Present: Councillor Woodward (Chair), Edwards (Vice-Chair) and Keane

25. MINUTES

The Minutes of the meeting held on 16 November 2023 were confirmed as a correct record
and signed by the Chair.

26. APPLICATION FOR THE RENEWAL OF A STREET TRADING CONSENT,
BROAD STREET, READING

The Sub-Committee considered a report on an application for the renewal of a street
trading consent from Mr Salim Alami in respect of Broad Street, Reading.

The report stated that Mr Alami (the applicant) had held a street trading consent on Broad
Street for over 15 years and for the majority of that time had sold leather goods, belts,
scarves, sunglasses, gloves, hats and buckles. Upon renewal of his street trading consent
in 2021 Mr Alami had successfully applied to sell juices, smoothies, slushies, shakes and
cakes. The report stated that Mr Alami had submitted a renewal application for street
trading consent on 10 October 2023 for the following:

Proposed trading hours:
Monday to Saturday - 0900hrs to 1800hrs.
Sunday - 1000hrs to 1700hrs.

Proposed goods to be sold:
Juices, Smoothies, Slushies, Shakes and Cakes.

A copy of the application was attached to the report at Appendix TS-1. A photograph of the
location of the pitch applied for (location outside 105 Broad Street) was attached to the
report at Appendix TS-2. The size of the proposed catering trailer was 12ft by 6ft and a
photograph of the proposed catering trailer was attached to the report at Appendix TS-3.

The report explained that during the 28-day consultation period for the renewal application
a representation had been received from Mr Robert Smalley, Reading Borough Council
(RBC) Licensing Team. A copy of the representation was attached to the report at Appendix
TS-4. The following appendices were attached to the representation:

Appendix RS-1 — Street Trading Consent Application Form
Appendix RS-2 — Photo of Trading Location

Appendix RS-3 — Photo of Trailer

Appendix RS-4 — Days Mr Alami Witnessed Not Trading
Appendix RS-5 — Letter Requesting Explanation from Mr Alami
Appendix RS-6 — Mr Alami’'s Response to Explanation Request

Information provided by the applicant to support the application was attached to the report
at Appendix TS-5. The applicant and the applicant’s representative had also submitted

1
Page 6



LICENSING APPLICATIONS SUB-COMMITTEE MEETING MINUTES - 28 NOVEMBER
2023

further information after the publication of the agenda which had been circulated to the Sub-
Committee and had been published as a supplement agenda pack, marked as Additional
Information 1 and Additional Information 2. The Additional Information included an
undertaking from the applicant.

Tabitha Shaw, RBC Licensing Team, presented the report to the Sub-Committee. Peter
Narancic and Ben Williams from the RBC Licensing Team also attended the meeting and
asked and answered questions.

Mr Salim Alami (the applicant) attended the meeting with his representative, Mr Jon Payne
of Licensing Lawyers. Both addressed the Sub-Committee and responded to questions
from Councillors and the Licensing Team.

Robert Smalley, RBC Licensing Team, attended the meeting to present the representation
he had submitted on behalf of the Licensing Team. He addressed the Sub-Committee and
responded to questions.

The Sub-Committee considered the Licensing Team’s concerns about the application which
revolved around Mr Alami’s failure to trade in the past. However, the Sub-Committee also
heard Mr Alami’s assertions that he was now ready and able to trade, subject to favourable
weather conditions, having completed the refitting of the trailer and having arranged access
to water. The Sub-Committee also heard that Mr Alami had been trading for 20 years, was
committed to trading regularly and was willing to amend his application to include some hot
drinks in order to increase when he might trade. The Sub-Committee understood the delays
caused to the trailer refitting process and that items like juices and smoothies were in
demand on a seasonal basis.

Resolved -
(1)  That, having given due consideration to the written evidence contained in the

paperwork and the oral evidence at the meeting, to the relevant legislation,
guidance, and policies of Reading Borough Council, and, in particular:

o The Powers of the Authority in determining an application for the
grant/renewal of a street trading consent;

. The Local Government (Miscellaneous Provisions) Act 1982, and
Schedule 4 in particular;

o All representations;

. All of the documents provided for the meeting; and,

. The Reading Borough Council Street Trading Policy 2023-2028, and
Annex 2 — Street Trading Standard Terms and Conditions:

The Sub-Committee grant the application for the renewal of the Street Trading
Consent, incorporating all of the Street Trading Standard Terms and
Conditions (set out at Annex 2 of the Reading Borough Council Street Trading
Policy 2023-2028) for the sale of:

Page 7



LICENSING APPLICATIONS SUB-COMMITTEE MEETING MINUTES - 28 NOVEMBER
2023

Juices, Smoothies, Slushies, Shakes, Cakes and Hot Food and Drink
not specifically listed on any existing street trading consent/licence
previously granted by Reading Borough Council.

The Applicant’s undertaking was accepted. The logistics of how and when the
trading log would be given to Licensing officers was left to the Applicant and
the Licensing Team to finalise and was not a condition made by the Sub-
Committee.

(The meeting started at 5.00 pm and closed at 6.19 pm)

Page 8



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 9



Appendix TS-2

XA I
&5 Reading

Name of Officer Robert Smalley

Street Trading Consent - Review — Local Government

Type of Application | \n.c laneous Provisions) Act 1982

Applicant Mr Salim Alami
Address Broad Street (Outside Clarks — 105 Broad Street)
Reading

Burgers, Loaded Fries, Jacket Potatoes, Slushie,
Lemonade, Mango Lassi, Hot Food and Drink not

Items Sold specifically listed on any existing street trading
consent/licence previously granted by Reading Borough
Council

Mon Tue | Wed | Thu Fri Sat Sun
0900- | 0900- | 0900- | 0900- | 0900- | 0900- | 1000-
1800 | 1800 | 1800 | 1800 | 1800 | 1800 | 1700

Proposed Trading
Times

Content of Application:

| am submitting this application to bring about the review of the street trading
consent held by Mr Salim Alami for a street trading pitch located on Broad Street
outside Clarks, 105 Broad Street. Mr Alami has failed to avail himself to a
reasonable extent of the street trading consent for the following consent periods:

01/11/2022 to 31/10/2023
01/11/2023 to 31/10/2024
01/11/2024 to Date

Licensing Officer’s Comments:

Mr Alami has held street trading consents on Broad Street for over 16 years and
for the majority of that time sold leather goods, belts, scarves, sunglasses,
gloves, hats and buckles. On renewal in 2021, Mr Alami applied to sell juices,
smoothies, slushies, shakes and cakes. On his most recent consent for the
period 01/11/2024 to 31/10/2025 Mr Alami has listed on his consent: Burgers,
Loaded Fries, Jacket Potatoes, Slushie, Lemonade, Mango Lassi, Hot Food and
Drink not specifically listed on any existing street trading consent/licence
previously granted by Reading Borough Council

| submit this review application on behalf of the Licensing department to address
the failure of Mr Alami to avail himself of the street trading consent for the
majority of 4.5 years. It has been noted by a number of council officers that since

Page 10



2020, Mr Alami has not been regularly trading from his pitch on Broad Street. In
February 2023 the Licensing team decided to investigate this matter to establish:
1) If Mr Alami is trading and 2) How often he is trading out of the 7 days that he
applied for. This investigation involved officers going to Mr Alami’s pitch location
on Broad Street to observe if he was trading as well as checking the town centre
CCTV recordings. All checks were done between the trading hours stated on the
street trading consent as applied for by Mr Alami. The findings of this
investigation were included in the hearing held on 28/11/2023 and showed that,
since February 2023, Mr Alami failed to trade on at least 45 days. Mr Alami did
send proof to the Licensing team that he traded on 1 day, specifically
07/10/2023. This was the only known day of trading between February and
November 2023.

At the hearing held on 28/11/2023, Mr Alami explained that, despite being the
person making the application, he had applied to sell products that were not
commercially viable all year round, and, therefore, did not trade during the winter
or on cold days during any other part of the year. | raised the point that it is for
Mr Alami to propose the goods that he wishes to sell, and, if they are not
commercially viable, then he should have applied to sell something else, rather
than not use his consent, and, in turn, deny another trader from utilising the pitch.
Mr Alami then proposed that, if he was able to sell other food and drink, then his
pitch would be commercially viable all year round. On this basis, the Sub-
Committee decided to renew Mr Alami’'s consent stating that he could sell:
‘Juices, Smoothies, Slushies, Shakes, Cakes and Hot Food and Drink not
specifically listed on any existing street trading consent/licence previously
granted by Reading Borough Council’.

The Local Government (Miscellaneous Provisions) Act 1982 is the legislation
that governs Street Trading outside London:

Schedule 4, paragraph 7, sub-paragraph 6 of the Act states:
The council may at any time vary the conditions of a street trading consent.
Schedule 4, paragraph 7, sub-paragraph 10 of the Act states:

A street trading consent may be granted for any period not exceeding 12
months but may be revoked at any time.

The above excerpt clearly explains that the Council can vary and revoke a street
trading consent for any reason and at any time. Although this review application
relates to a street trading consent, one of the statutory reasons that a council
can refuse a street trading licence application is ‘that the applicant has without
reasonable excuse failed to avail himself to a reasonable extent of a previous
street trading licence’. This point amplifies that, although the Council may refuse
a street trading consent application as they see fit, the reason given in this

Page 11




representation for recommending the revocation of the trading consent is, in fact,
one which may be used to refuse a street trading licence application, which itself
is a more entrenched authorisation.

On 12/02/2025 | sent an e-mail containing a letter to Mr Alami to request from
him an explanation as to why he has not been seen trading. This letter goes on
to explain that if Mr Alami continues to fail to use his consent, then further
enforcement action will be considered, including the possibility of applying to the
Licensing Committee to revoke the consent. This letter is attached as Appendix
RS-1.

Appendix RS-2 contains all of the subsequent e-mails following the initial e-mail
sent on 12/02/2025 between myself and Mr Alami. In summary, Mr Alami states
that his current unit is not suitable to sell the hot food items listed on his consent.
In response to this, | explained that if he made the application and stated that he
would be using his current unit to trade from, then he should follow through and
trade with said unit. | emphasised that, if a new trader applied for a consent but
did not have a trading unit, then we would not accept the application. | believe
Mr Alami has ‘kept his foot in the door’ by renewing his consent with the intention
of, one day, trading in the town centre, again. | consider this to be an abuse of
the system and denies the pitch being given to another trader who will utilise it.
It is appreciated that, from time to time, a trader may be unable to trade due to
faults with their unit or for medical reasons etc, however, Mr Alami has had, at
the very minimum, 18 months to secure a suitable unit to trade from, which,
based on what | have been told from other traders, is plenty of time. Regardless
of this, Mr Alami has not been forthcoming with his reason for not trading, as we
would reasonably expect of a trader who is not turning up to work, instead, it has
required correspondence to be sent to him informing him of the possibility of
further enforcement action.

Appendix RS-3 contains a list of dates that Mr Alami has not been trading since
December 2024. As per the visits in 2023, all checks were done between the
trading hours stated on the street trading consent. You will note that Mr Alami
has not been trading on at least 41 days, however, | believe that Mr Alami has
not traded at all since at least the grant of his current consent in November 2024.

This is the second time Mr Alami has been in front of the sub-committee for the
same reason,; failing to trade from his consent pitch. The first time he attended
a hearing he explained that the items he chose to sell were not saleable in all
weathers and therefore requested to sell other food and drink items that will be
marketable in all weathers. Now he is before you, again, for the same reason of
failing to trade from his consent pitch, however, this time with the explanation
that he hasn’t been able to find a suitable unit to trade from in the 18 months
since he was authorised to sell a greater range of items. If allowed to continue
to hold a consent, | do not have faith that Mr Alami will utilise it to its fullest extent,
that is, if he uses it at all.

Page 12




It is the view of the Licensing department that the failure of Mr Alami to avalil
himself of the consent issued to him results in a negative impact on Broad Street.
Those visiting Broad Street are being denied the opportunity to shop at one of
the limited designated street trading pitches in the town centre, leading to less
options and variety.

It is the recommendation of the Licensing department that the street trading
consent be revoked in order that a new trader may be sought that will bring
variety and interest to Broad Street and will utilise any consent issued by the
Council to its full extent. There is no right of appeal against the decision of the

Council.
Appendices:

1. Appendix RS-1 — Letter Requesting Explanation from Mr Alami
2. Appendix RS-2 — E-mails between Robert Smalley & Salim Alami
3. Appendix RS-3 - List of dates that Mr Alami was not trading

[Date | 09 [ 05 [2025]

Page 13



Appendix RS-1
% Read I ng IEnntqttz‘T:?mG Eiecutive Director of

Borough Council Economic Growth & Neighbourhood
Working better with you Services
Reading Borough Council, Civic
Offices, Bridge St, Reading, RG1 2LU

Our Ref: 124700

r T
Direct: & 0118 9373 762

I E mail: robert.smalley@reading.gov.uk
I
[ ] 12 February 2025
I
E-mailed to: |

L _I

Your contact is: Robert Smalley, Licensing

Dear Sir,

| am writing to you to request an explanation of your current situation in relation to the
street trading consent that you hold for a pitch on Broad Street, outside Clarks. On
numerous occasions during the period of your consent for 2023-2024 you were observed
not trading. You are reminded that you are supposed to trade on the days and times you
have listed on your street trading consent.

Please note that officers shall be monitoring your activity on Broad Street in the coming
weeks. If we believe you are not trading to the days and times on your consent, then
further enforcement action will be considered.

Please respond to this letter by 28/02/2025 with a full explanation as to why you have not
been trading.

The Licensing Department will consider all enforcement powers available to us, and
this includes applying to the Licensing Committee to revoke your consent. If | do not
hear from you by 28/02/2025, then | will consider that you no longer wish to continue
trading on Broad Street and | shall write to the Licensing Committee seeking the
revocation of your consent.

Yours faj\thful'!y

N |

Licensing Enforcement Officer

Page 14

www.reading.gov.uk



Appendix RS-2

From: Smalley, Robert <Robert.Smalley@reading.gov.uk>

Sent: 09 April 2025 12:52

To: salim alami

Subject: RE: Request for Information - Street Trading Consent - Broad Street, Reading

Good afternoon,
Please see my response to your e-mail, in bold, below:

I've been trying to get a trailer more suited to selling food. Because the current one is not set up
for selling hot food well - | appreciate this but you renewed your consent with the trailer you
have and therefore should be trading from. As and when a new trailer is purchased, then
we would discuss updating the consent with the new unit. If a new trader came to us
requesting a consent without a trading unit, their application would be refused.
Furthermore, it has almost been 18 months since you attended a sub-committee in
relation to your consent and, save for a handful of days, you have continued not to trade
with the unit you have and were granted a consent for.

Also now the councilis asking all town centre licenses to have a certain type of trailer it's made
it more difficult. | was in the process of just about to buy a new one when the council decided to
ask licenses get these types of trailers. But | would like to ask a question. Why would a normal
catering trailer if its nice and clean, not be suitable? — The change is to improve the street
scene image. The example units we sent over are not an exhaustive list. Another trader has
proposed an airstream unit which has been deemed acceptable, an example is below:

If you have an idea for a unit, please forward the details to me.
Kind regards,

Robert Smalley

Enforcement Officer

Licensing | Public Protection

Directorate of Economic Growth and Neighbourhood Services

Reading Borough Council

Page 15



From: salim alami

Sent: 07 March 2025 06:37

To: Smalley, Robert <Robert.Smalley@reading.gov.uk>

Subject: Re: Request for Information - Street Trading Consent - Broad Street, Reading

Hi
I've been trying to get a trailer more suited to selling food.
Because the current one is not set up for selling hot food well .

Also now the councilis asking all town centre licenses to have a certain type of trailer it's made
it more difficult.

I was in the process of just about to buy a new one when the council decided to ask licenses get
these types of trailers.

Butiwould like to ask a question.
Why would a normal catering trailer if its nice and clean , not be suitable ?

Normal standard catering trailers are set up to accommodate the user of a catering business to
make it easier for them and be more hygienic.

The ones that the council are suggesting may look more retro from the outside. But they do
nothing for the people working inside to make it more comfortable to do their job.

Would you like a person serving you food to be in a comfortable environment which helps to
make the food better or a uncomfortable environment where they are frustrated?

You should ask people who use these types of trailers which ones they would prefer to use
rather than thinking aesthetically from the outside only.

Because it's what happens on the inside that counts.

Salim alami

Page 16



From: Smalley, Robert <Robert.Smalley@reading.gov.uk>

Sent: Tuesday, March 4, 2025 8:54:34 PM

To: salim alami

Subject: RE: Request for Information - Street Trading Consent - Broad Street, Reading

Good evening,
Thank you for your response, please see my responses in bold:

Are you requesting this because | am requesting a certain type of unit on my pitch — No, the fact
that we are investigating you for not utilising your consent is not related to your current
unit’s appearance.

| would like a bit a clarity because | what to start trading more throughout the year and a unit
similar to the one | forwarded you would allow me to use the pitch more effectively. — You are
already supposed to be trading with the unit you hold a consent for.

As | would be able to set everything up and leave it there , then all | would have to worry about is
my stock . All traders must remove their units when not trading, so this is not a possibility.

Please may you explain why you have not been trading.

Kind regards,

Robert Smalley

Enforcement Officer

Licensing | Public Protection

Directorate of Economic Growth and Neighbourhood Services

Reading Borough Council

Page 17



From: salim alami

Sent: 12 February 2025 18:39

To: Smalley, Robert <Robert.Smalley@reading.gov.uk>

Subject: Re: Request for Information - Street Trading Consent - Broad Street, Reading

Hi
Are you requesting this because | am requesting a certain type of unit on my pitch.

I would like a bit a clarity because | what to start trading more throughout the year and a unit
similar to the one | forwarded you would allow me to use the pitch more effectively.

As | would be able to set everything up and leave it there , then all | would have to worry about is
my stock .

I'm sure it's a headache pulling the trailer back and forth every day as I've done already for years
prior, also now with the equipment in a trailer, | have to make sure everything is stable in the
trailer before moving.

So 2 times a day I'm having to almost build a new kitchen and then take it down again.
Instead of just concentrating on what I'm selling.

| hope you understand what | mean.

Thanks

Salim alami

Page 18



From: Smalley, Robert <Robert.Smalley@reading.gov.uk>
Sent: Wednesday, February 12, 2025 5:35:07 PM

To: salim alami
Subject: Request for Information - Street Trading Consent - Broad Street, Reading

Good evening,

Please see the attached letter and respond to me by 28/02/2025.
Kind regards,

Robert Smalley

Enforcement Officer

Licensing | Public Protection

Directorate of Economic Growth and Neighbourhood Services

Reading Borough Council

Page 19



Appendix RS-3

Mr Salim Alami - Street Trading Observations - February 2025 to March 2025

Reading Borough Council officers visited the location that Mr Alami holds a street trading
consent to trade from and it was noted that Mr Alami was not trading on the following
days:

December 2024: April 2025:

04/12/2024
11/12/2024
18/12/2024

January 2025:

08/01/2025
15/01/2025
22/01/2025
29/01/2025

01/04/2025
02/04/2025
04/04/2025
08/04/2025
09/04/2025
10/04/2025
14/04/2025
16/04/2025
23/04/2025

February 2025: 29/04/2025

05/02/2025 May 2025:
06/02/2025 06/05/2025
12/02/2025
13/02/2025
17/02/2025
18/02/2025
19/02/2025
25/02/2025
26/02/2025
27/02/2025
28/02/2025

March 2025:

03/03/2025
04/03/2025
06/03/2025
11/03/2025
12/03/2025
14/03/2025
17/03/2025
18/03/2025
19/03/2025
20/03/2025
24/03/2025
27/03/2025

Page 20



Appendix TS-3

RSN I
& Reading

Working better with you No 870631

LOCAL GOVERNMENT (MISCELLANEOUS PROVISIONS) ACT 1982

STREET TRADING CONSENT
Reading Borough Council, being the Licensing Authority
under Part 3 of the above Act, hereby grant a Street Trading Consent to:
Consent Holder
s$alim Alami

To trade at the following location only:
Broad $treet-Outside Clarks
On the following days:
Monday to $aturday from 0900 hours to 1800 hours

Sunday from 1000 hours to 1700 hours
Trade Vehicle:
12ft $treet S$tall Catering Trailer
Goods to be sold:
Burgers, loaded fries, jacket potatoes, slushi, lemonade mango lassi, hot food &

drink not specifically listed on any existing street trading consent/licence
previously granted by Reading Borough Council
Commencement Date: 01/11/2024  Expiry Date: 31/10/2025

Please note = The sale of goods under this Consent is strictly
restricted to the above-named goods only. No other
goods are permitted to be sold at any time.

This Licence is subject to the General Conditions
and $pecial Conditions attached

James Crosbie
Assistant Director, Planning, Transport Public Protection
Directorate of Economic Growth & Neighbourhood Services

Page 21



THI$ CONSENT MUST BE DISPLAYED CONSPICUOUSLY
ON THE STALL OR VEHICLE SPECIFIED

Page 22



gg abed

Appendix TS-4




Appendix TS-5

Page 24



From:

To: Julie Quarmby
Cc: Woodward, Paul (Councillor); Stevens, David (Councillor); Mitchell, Clarence (Councillor)
Subject: Re: URGENT REQUEST - (Licensing Applications Sub-Committee — Thursday, 26th June 2025, 9:30 AM)
Date: 26 June 2025 09:24:08
Warning!

This mail is from an external sender - please do not click any links or open any

For the attention of . g
attachments unless you trust this sender, and know the content is safe

RBC, BFfC Staff and Councillors

DEFENSE STATEMENT: MR. SALIM ALAMI

RE: BROAD STREET STREET TRADING LICENSE REVIEW
Dear Licensing Sub-Committee,

My name is Salim Alami, and | have proudly traded on Broad Street for over 20 years, operating seven
days a week prior to the pandemic, selling luggage and travel goods. | am deeply grateful for the
opportunity to serve the people of Reading, and | wish to present my response to the proposal to
revoke my street trading license due to reduced trading activity following the pandemic.

Background

Before COVID-19, | traded consistently, paid all fees on time, and, in over two decades, never
received a single complaint from the public or fellow traders. | took pride in running my business with
professionalism, reliability, and integrity.

Then the pandemic changed everything. My trade—selling luggage and bags—was severely
impacted. With travel halted and holidays cancelled, demand for my products collapsed. Even
today, travel habits have not fully recovered. Unlike food or flowers, luggage is not a regular or
essential purchase—especially as fewer people now commute or travel abroad.

Footfallin the town centre also dropped significantly. The permanent loss of many office workers has
affected all traders, but particularly those like myself who sell non-essential goods. Despite these
challenges, | never gave up. | continued paying for my pitch—often at personal financial strain—not
because | was inactive, but because | remained committed to returning and rebuilding.

Rebuilding After the Pandemic

Prior to COVID, | had even opened a physical shop alongside my pitch—a reflection of how well my
business was doing. Post-pandemic, | explored new avenues to remain active. | experimented with
selling drinks, and later, food—despite having no prior experience in either sector.

Not every attempt was successful—selling drinks alone was not viable year-round—but | learned
from each experience. | observed that food vendors were among the few resilient traders on the high
street, and | began developing a new catering concept.

On several occasions, | wanted to trial new products, but the system did not allow changes to hours,
product types, or trading vehicles mid-license, restricting my ability to adapt and innovate when |
needed it most.

| adapted my trailer to reduce costs, but soon realised that a purpose-built catering trailer would be
essential for fast, efficient service. Just as | identified and secured a suitable second-hand trailer, |
was informed that trailers of that type were being phased out. | sought clarification on what the
acceptable standards were, but no clear guidance was provided. Faced with uncertainty and the risk
of further financial loss, | could not proceed.

Instead of support or collaboration, | received a formal and discouraging email in February 2025. It
made no mention of the efforts | had made or the broader challenges | was navigating. | felt it lacked
empathy and recognition of the difficult path | have been walking.

Page 25


mailto:Julie.Quarmby@reading.gov.uk
mailto:Paul.Woodward@reading.gov.uk
mailto:David.Stevens@reading.gov.uk
mailto:Clarence.Mitchell@reading.gov.uk

Personal and Emotional Challenges

What | share next is deeply personal, but | believe it is important context. | am the sole provider for
my family—married with three children, one of whom is now attending university thanks to my
support. | also have close family in Gaza and Yemen, both experiencing severe humanitarian crises.
The emotional toll of these ongoing tragedies weighs heavily on me and has affected my mental
health. | have sought medical help to manage anxiety and depression.

This strain has been compounded by the fear of losing my livelihood. While I’ve observed some
traders receiving supportive engagement from council officers, my own experience has often been
the opposite—limited to warnings and enforcement. | have felt scrutinised and excluded, making my
place of work feel less welcoming and more stressful.

Recent Efforts and Commitment

Since receiving the council’s February email, | have resumed regular trading—averaging six days a
week over the past six weeks—even though selling drinks alone is not financially sustainable. This
recent commitment is not acknowledged in the officer’s report, but | hope the Sub-Committee will
view it as a clear sign of my intent to rebuild and remain a reliable trader.

If concerns persist regarding my attendance or intentions, | would gladly accept a trial period to
demonstrate my ongoing reliability. | would also respectfully request clear and formal guidance on
which types of trading trailers are acceptable and what specific standards apply, so | can plan
accordingly and invest with confidence.

Sustainability and Risk of Vacancy

There are no guarantees that, if the Licensing Team is successful in persuading you to revoke my
license, the council will not face extended periods of vacancy or disruption. The pitch on Queens
Walk has remained mostly unoccupied since its creation. Until about a year ago, the second pitch at
Reading Station North was mostly vacant until the arrival of the most recent trader. Similarly, the
second pitch on Bridge Street was left vacant for a considerable amount of time following the
closure of Charms and Flavours from Madeira, until Greece Foods eventually took it.

Itis entirely possible that similar challenges would arise again in trying to secure reliable
replacements for my pitch. Introducing new traders often comes with delays and uncertainty as they
find their feet—or fail to. In contrast, | am an established trader with a long-standing presence in the
town centre, and | am finally turning a corner after several difficult years. Surely, it makes more
sense to continue working with someone who is committed, who has always paid pitch fees, and
who understands the realities of the pitch—rather than risk instability and disruption to the street
market.

Final Appeal

I am not asking for special treatment—only for fairness, and for the opportunity to be assessed

based on the full context. | have never received a complaint and have continued paying my fees
through the most challenging periods of my life. | have remained loyal to Broad Street, to Reading,
and to my customers. | have worked hard to adapt in the face of enormous personal and professional
obstacles.

To revoke my license now, just as | am finding my footing again, would be devastating. It would not
reflect the full story, nor the genuine effort | have made over the past two decades.

| respectfully ask the Sub-Committee to allow me the chance to continue contributing to Broad
Street and rebuilding my business with clarity, stability, and hope.

Thank you for your time and consideration.

Page 26



Warm regards,

Salim Alami

Page 27



This page is intentionally left blank



	Agenda
	2 Application for the Review of a Street Trading Consent - Broad Street, Reading
	Application for the Review of a Street Trading Consent - Committee Report
	Appendix TS-1 - Minutes of 28.11.2023
	Appendix TS-2 - Licensing Rep & Appendices
	Appendix RS-1 - Letter dated 12 February 2025
	Appendix RS-2 - emails between Robert Smalley and Salim Alami
	Appendix RS-3 - list of dates not trading

	Appendix TS-3 - Current Consent
	Appendix TS-4 - Location on Broad Street
	Appendix TS-5 - Photo of Trailer
	Late information considered at meeting




